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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14™ Annual General Meeting of Hannah Joseph Hospital
Limited will be held on Friday, the 26" September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial
year ended 31* March, 2025 and the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the
Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr.Noyel Arunkumar (DIN: 09452961),
Non-executive, Non-Independent Director, who retires from office by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and upon the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company;
Mr.Noyel Arunkumar (DIN: 09452961), Non-executive, Non-Independent Director of the
Company, who retires from office by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, has offered
himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

Special Business

3. To fix the remuneration payable to Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar, Whole- time
Director of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as
a special resolution.

“RESOLVED that Pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), and in partial modification of the resolution
passed by the members of the Company at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of
shareholders held on 30™ December, 2024 and pursuant to the recommendation of the
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board, consent of the
members be and hereby accorded to fix and pay remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rupees
Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar (DIN:
03608651), Whole-time Director, with effect from 1% September, 2025, for the remaining
tenure of her appointment i.e., up to 31st July, 2027.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year during the aforesaid period, the Company will pay to Dr. Fenn Kavith Fenn Arunkumar,
Whole-time Director, the aforesaid remuneration as minimum remuneration and
notwithstanding that such remuneration may exceed 5% (five percent) of the net profits
being the limit specified under Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or
desirable to give effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto. "

4. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for the Company and fixing their Remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and all other applicable
provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and pursuant to the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
of the Company, M/s. S.Rajaguru & Associates, Company Secretaries,(Firm Registration no.
S2023TN952000) Madurai be and are hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the
company for a period of 5 years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30 to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company on a remuneration decided by the Board of Directors from
time to time.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Hannah Jogeph Hospital Limited,

/
.M.J.Arunkumar
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 03608603)

Madurai
30.08.2025
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NOTES:

1. In view of the continuing relaxation provided by the Ministry of Corporate Aftairs (MCA)
vide Circulars issued from time to time, the AGM shall be held through VC/OAVM without

the physical presence of members at a common venue.

2. The facility for joining the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 15 minutes

before the scheduled time and will remain open throughout the proceedings of the meeting.

3. Members are requested to join the meeting through the following Zoom link:
Meeting Link:

[https://usO6web.zoom.us/|/81 385727999?pwd=buJBpagKZ|uHfwiryEDbbs1unblkiE.1]
Meeting 1D: [813 8572 7999
Passcode: [917945]

4. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, proxy is not allowed in case of

meetings held through VC/OAVM.

6. Members seeking any information/ clarification with regard to the financials or any matter
to be placed at the AGM are requested to write to the Company Secretary of the Company at
csyuvarajs@gmail.com at least 7 days before the date of the meeting, so as to enable the

management to keep the information ready.

7. The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is being sent

by electronic mode to all members whose email addresses are registered with the

Company/Depository.
/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS ITEMS

Item No. 3:

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company
for a period of 5 years at the AGM held on September 30, 2022, and no remuneration was
fixed for her.

Now, considering the increased scale of business activities of the Company and the higher
managerial and strategic responsibilities entrusted to her, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, at its meeting held on 30" August, 2025 recommended payment of
remuneration details as contained in the said resolution with effect from 01% September
2025 for the remaining period of her tenure, up to 31% July 2027. The Board of Directors, at
its meeting held on 30th August, 2025 approved the said recommendation, subject to the
approval of members.

The fixation of remuneration is considered necessary to adequately compensate the Whole-
time Director for her services and to recognise her role in managing the growing operations
of the Company.

Except DrM.J.Arunkumar, Managing Director, Dr.Arunkumar Nalina, Mr.Noyel
Arunkumar, Non-Executive Directors and Mr. Daniel Dayanand Fenn (CFO), none of the
key managerial personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested financially or
otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of this Special Resolution given at Item No. 3 of
the notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 4: Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for the Company and fixing their
Remuneration

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third
Amendment) Regulations, 2015, a listed entity should appoint a Secretarial Auditor for a
period of 5 years with the approval of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. In line
= |with these provisions, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee approved the appointment of M/s. S.Rajaguru & Associates, Company
Secretaries,(Firm Registration no. S2023TN952000) Madurai as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year from 2025-2026 to
/ 2029-2030 on remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors.
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the company / their relatives is in any
way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out in Item No.4
of the notice.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the notice for
approval by the members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Hannah Joseph Hospital Limited,

o

J.Arunkumar
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 03608603)

Madurai
30.08.2025
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Annexure to Notice:
Details of Directors seeking Appointment /Re-appointment at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting:

[Pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 on

General Meetings issued by the Institute of

Companies Secretaries of India]

Name of Director Mr.Noyel Arunkumar

Category - Non-Executive (Non-Independent)

DIN 07495044

Date of Birth 13/12/2001

Age 24

Qualification Pursuing M.B.B.S I
Date of First Appointment on the Board | 03/01/2022

Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr Noyel Arunkumar is the son of Dr M |
Arunkumar, Managing Director of the company.
He did his schooling at the Vikaasa School,
Madurai and joined the MBBS course at the Shri
Satya Sai Medical College and Research Centre,
Chengelpet (Chennai) in the year 2020. After
completing his undergraduate medical degree, he
will be pursuing his post graduation before joining
his parents at the Hannah Joseph Hospital Madurai.
He is known for his administrative talents and
dynamic personality.

Terms and conditions of
Appointment/Re-appointment

As per the resolution at item No. 2 of the notice
convening this meeting, Mr.Noyel Arunkumar is
liable to retire by rotation at the

meeting and eligible for re-appointment.

Remuneration last drawn

Not Applicable

Remuneration proposed

Sitting Fees as approved by the Board of Directors

Relationship with Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel

Mr. Noyel Arunkumar is the son of
Dr.M.J. Arunkumar and Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn
Arunkumar, brother of Dr.Arunkumar Nalina and
nephew of Mr. Daniel Dayanand Fenn (CFO)

List of Companies in Which directorship
is held
as on 31st March, 2025

Nil

Listed entities from which the Director
has resigned from Directorship in last 3
(three) years

Not Applicable

No. of Board meetings attended during

the Year 2024-25/ No. of Board meetings | 7/7
held during the tenure of Directors
. . . (
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HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

(CIN:U74999TN2011PLC082860)

REGD. OFFICE: 134, LAKE VIEW ROAD, K.K.NAGAR, MADURAI- 625020
Website: www.hannahjosephhospital.com, Phone : 0452-3505151 (30 lines)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 14th Annual Report of the
Company comprising of the audited Financial Statements comprising of the
Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the notes and report of
the statutory auditors thereon. '

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS - REVIEW:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | Variance in

%

Revenue from operations 7753.13 6340.78 22,27
Other Income . 36.92 2202 67.67
Total Expenditure 6755.32 5,828.49 15.90
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 1034.73 534.31 93.66
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 720.99 406.65 77.30
Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 4.32 2.44 77

2. DIVIDEND:

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-25
as it desired to infuse the profits for the Company’s requirements.

3. BUSINESS REVIEW:

The Company continues its focus on furthering its Healthcare services in
Neurosciences and Trauma care on a much larger scale. The Company has
planned to add Oncological (Cancer care) Services in the coming years. The
SME IPO proceeds has been planned in this regard and proceeds of IPO fund
will support the building and equipments of the Cncology department which
will take a minimum of one year. The Company is also planning to have its
branch of Pharmacy & Lab Services at the address of registered office premises
situated at 134, Lake View Road, K.K.Nagar, Madurai - 625 020 under the
name of Hannah Joseph Hospital Pharmacy & Lab Services, which will be open




for public; this will be take place in this financial year 2025-26. It is hoped that
the Company would continue its good performance in the coming years.

4. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIR:

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the
year under review.

5. ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company, in the Form MGT-7 in accordance with
Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time
to time and read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return is available on the website of
the Company at the following link: https://hannahjosephhospital.com/

6.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY THAT OCCURRED BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statement relates and the date of this report.

7.DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE, OR ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary
Company/Joint Venture /Associate Company.

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is managed by the Managing Director under the superintendence
and control of the Board of Directors of the Company.

(i) Mr.C.N.Srinivasan (DIN:09802425), Mr.R.Mukundan (DIN: 03619602),
Mr.Salaivel Pratheep (DIN: 10712608) and Mr.Kumarasamy Sureshkumar
(DIN: 10715436) were appointed in the category of Independent Directors for a
term of 5 (five) at the 13th Annual General Meeting held on September 30,
2024.

(i) Mr. Noyel Arunkumar (DIN: 09452961) Non-Executive, Non-Independent
Director who is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 14" Annual General




Meeting of the Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment, as a Director of the Company.

9. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Independent Directors have submitted their declaration of independence,
stating that:

a) They continue to fulfill the criteria of independence provided in Section
149 (6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation
16(1)(b) ; and

b) There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with
the Company’s Code of Conduct. In terms of Section 150 of the Act and Rules
framed thereunder, the Independent Directors have also confirmed their
registration (including renewal of applicable tenure) and compliance of the
online proficiency self- assessment test (unless exempted) with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

The Board opined and confirm, in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 that the Independent Directors are persons of high repute,
integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience in their respective
fields.

10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has duly followed the applicable Secretarial standards, relating
to Meeting of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2), issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

11. BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board held 7 meetings namely on the dates
of 15t  June, 2024, 26t July, 2024, 19t August, 2024,
05t September, 2024, 13t November, 2024, 19t December 2024,
and 27t March 2025. Following is the attendance of each of the Directors at
the Board Meetings held during the period under review:




12. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, the Board re-constituted the following
Committees of the Board as given hereunder.

a. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of the following members.

. Des:g-natlon Nature of
Name of the Director in . .
i Directorship
Committee
Mr.Salaivel Pratheep Chairman Independent Director
Mr. C N Srinivasan Member Independent Director
Mr. R Mukundan Member Independent Director
Mr.Kumarasamy Sureshkumar Member Independent Director
Dr. M.J Arunkumar Member Managing Director

b. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following
members.

Name of the Director .Des1gnatlon Nature of Directorship
in Committee
Mr.Kumarasamy Sureshkumar Chairman Independent Director
Mr. C N Srinivasan Member Independent Director
Mr. R Mukundan Member Independent Director
Mr.Salaivel Pratheep Member Independent Director
Dr.Arunkumar Nalina Member Non- Executive Director

c. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee consists of the following members:

Name of the Director Designation Nature of
in Committee Directorship
Mr.Salaivel Pratheep Chairman Independent Director
Mr. C N Srinivasan Member Independent Director
Mr. R Mukundan Member Independent Director
Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar Member Whole-time Director




The

Board also constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR

Committee during the year as under:

The CSR Committee consists of the following members:

Name of the Director Designat'ion in ;Tature Ot:
Committee Directorship
Dr. M.J Arunkumar Chairman Managing Director
Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar Member Whole-time Director
Mr.Kumarasamy Sureshkumar Member Independent Director

13. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As required under Section 134 of the Act (including any statutory
modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the
Directors of the Company state that:

a)

b)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with the proper explanation relating to material departures;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on March 31, 2025, and of its profit and loss for the
financial year ended on that date;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Director had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year
2024-25 on a going concern basis; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all the applicable laws and that such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.




14. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central
Government as per section 148 applicable on the Company and the Company
has maintained proper records and account of the same as required under the
Act. ’

15. CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from
Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Rupees twenty crore only) to Rs. 25,00,00,000 (Rupees
twenty five crore only) during the year under review. However, there is no
change in the paid-up share capital of the Company during the F.Y 2024-25.

16.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, OR INVESTMENTS MADE
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review the Company has not given any loan to any
person or other body corporate, not given any guarantee or provided any
security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and
not acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of
any other body corporate.

17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
RELATED PARTIES MADE PURSUANT TO SECTION 188 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Transactions with related parties were conducted in a transparent manner in
the best interest of the Company and Stakeholders. All the transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year under review were in the
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and reviewed by Audit
Committee.

The details of related party transactions entered into in reference to section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in Form AOC-2 vide Annexure-I
attached to this report.

18. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS, AND OUTGO:

1. In terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended, the Company is carrying
on activities relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption
wherever possible.




2. The Foreign Exchange earnings during the year is Rs. Nil and the Outgo:
Rs.Nil

19. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of the Company formed a Risk Management Committee to frame,
implement and monitor the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The
Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the Risk Management
Policy and ensuring its effectiveness. The major risks identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuous basis.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company discharges its Corporate Social Responsibility obligations
through towards supporting projects as prescribed under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, in line with the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of
the Company.

The Board of Directors has approved the CSR Policy of the
Company, which is available on the website of the Company at
https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/.

The Annual Report on CSR activities, for the year under review, in the
prescribed format, as required under Sections 134 and 135 of the Act read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
(as amended) and Rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished
in “Annexure- II.”

21. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE:

During the year under review, the Company has not received any significant
orders/ material orders passed by any of Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals
impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in
future.

22. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Act
has established a Vigil Mechanism Policy to report genuine concerns to the




management viz, instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and to assist the
Audit Committee. It encouraged to come forward and express their concern(s),
if any without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.

The Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company is made
available on the website at https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/.

23. DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

24. UNSECURED LOAN FROM DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the Company has received an unsecured loan
Rs.3.00 Crore from Dr.M.J.Arunkumar, Managing Director of the Company
in compliance with the provisions of Section 73 read with Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, which excludes from the
definition of deposits any amount received from a director of the Company,
provided that the director furnishes a declaration in writing to the Company
that the amount is not being given out of funds acquired by him by borrowing
or accepting loans or deposits from others.

25. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

As per the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, on the recommendation of
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Board of
Directors had approved a Policy which lays down a framework in relation to
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the
other employees and their remuneration.

Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/.

26. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL &
SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management is as per the Companies Act, 2013 and is in accordance with the




Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

27.DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS:

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme/ Plan.

28. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The members at the 13th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September,
2024 approved the appointment of M/s. A.V. Subramanian & Co. Chartered
Accountants (FRN 010643S) Madurai, as a Statutory Auditor for a period of five
financial years from 2024-25 to 2028-29.

29. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS
OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND
THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the
Auditors in their report.

30. DISCLOSURE' UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 (POSH, 2013) and constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) under this Act. The policy formulated by the Company for prevention of
sexual harassment is made available on the website of the Company at
https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/.

During the year under review, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment at
work place has been received by the Company.

31. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961:

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act,
1961, including all applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder. The
Company is committed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and supportive workplace
for women employees. All eligible women employees are provided with
maternity benefits as prescribed under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal
during maternity leave.




The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or
service conditions on the grounds of maternity. Necessary internal systems and
HR policies are in place to uphold the spirit and letter of the legislation.

32. GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES

In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the
Company discloses below the gender composition of its workforce as on the
March 31, 2025.

Male Employees: 165
Female Employees: 166
Transgender Employees: NIL

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive
workplace culture and equal opportunity for all individuals, regardless of
gender.

33. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS:

The Company has an adequate system of Internal Financial Control
commensurate with its size and scale of operations, procedures and policies,
ensuring efficient and orderly conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policy, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and
timely preparation of reliable financial information.

Based on the assessment carried out by the Management and the evaluation of
the results of the assessment, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
has adequate Internal Financial Control System that is operating effectively.

There were no instances of fraud which necessitates reporting of material mis-
statement to the Company’s operations duly the year under review.

34. REPORTING OF FRAUDS:

During the year under review, there have been no frauds reported by the
Statutory Auditors of the Company under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Act.




35.DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING
UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE
YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR:

During the year under review and till date of this Report, the Company has
neither made any application against anyone nor any proceedings were
pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to record their appreciation for the whole hearted and the
sincere co-operation extended to the Company by various Government
authorities, the Company’s bankers, lenders, customers and suppliers. The
Directors also wish to thank all the employees for their dedicated contribution
made to the Company and look forward to have their continued performance in
the years to come.

(By Order of the Board)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

/’
Madurai Dr.M.J. nkumar
30.08.2025 Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN: 03608603)
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Annexure-I
HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED
(CIN:U74999TN2011PLC082860)
REGISTERED OFFICE: 134, LAKE VIEW ROAD, K.K.NAGAR, MADURAI- 625020

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.: Nil

2. (a).Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Dr.M.J.Arunkumar
relationship Managing Director
i) Nature of Professional medicine service
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iv) Salient terms of the contracts or Professional fees paid for
arrangements or transaction including the | rendering medicine service —
value, if any Rs.72.15 lakhs
v) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
2 (b). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Dr.M.J.Arunkumar
relationship Managing Director
ii) Nature of , Lease rent for the Regd. Office
contracts/arrangements/transaction building and Hospital Staff
hostel premises.
ii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iv) Salient terms of the contracts or Building lease on monthly rent
arrangements or transaction including the | basis - Rs.35.40 lakhs (including
value, if any GST)
v) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
2 (). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Dr.M.J.Arunkumar
relationship Managing Director
i) Nature of Leasehold land rent for
contracts/arrangements/transaction Chinthamani location premises.
ii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iv) Salient terms of the contracts or Rent paid for the leasehold land
arrangements or transaction including the | situated at Chinthamani being
value, if any used for Hospital and Pharmacy
- Rs.123.90 lakhs (including
GST)
v) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil




2 (d). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
| SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & Dr.M.J.Arunkumar
nature of relationship Managing Director
i) Nature of Interest paid for the Unsecured Loan
contracts/arrarigements/transaction | taken from him.
ii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iv) Salient terms of the contracts or Interest paid Rs. 5.95 lakhs
arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any
v) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
2 (e). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn
relationship Arunkumar,
Whole-time Director
ii) Nature of Professional medicine service
contracts/arrangements/transaction
ii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
iv) Salient terms of the contracts or Professional fees paid for
arrangements or transaction including the | rendering medicine service —
value, if any Rs.59.39 lakhs
v) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
2 (f). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
i) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn
relationship Arunkumar,
Whole-time Director
i) Nature of Interest for vehicle loan taken by
contracts/arrangements/transaction Dr.Fenn Kavitha Fenn
Arunkumar for the Company
ii) Duration of the 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
contracts/arrangements/transaction
) Salient terms of the contracts or Interest amount of Rs.0.47 lakhs
arrangements or transaction including the | paid for the vehicle loan taken
value, if any for use relating to Company’s
work.
V) Date of approval by the Board 30/08/2025
vi) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
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Annexure - II

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1) Brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR Policy of the Company focuses on contributing to sustainable
development by supporting projects in the areas of education, health care, rural
development, environmental sustainability, and other activities as specified under
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy also outlines the process for
identification, approval, implementation, and monitoring of CSR activities and
projects, including ongoing projects. The CSR Policy is available on the Company’s
website at: [https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/|

2) Composition of CSR Committee:

Number of
. Number of
Designation / . meetings
S. 2 meetings of CSR
Name of Director Nature of h attended
No. § Committee held 3
Directorship . during the
during the year
year
Dr.Moses Joseph ;
1 Avarilonist Chairperson 1 1
Dr.Fenn Kavitha
= Fenn Arunkumar Member I 1
3 Mr.Kumarasamy Mesibei 1 0
Sureshkumar

3) Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy
and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the
company.

[https:/ /hannahjosephhospital.com/]

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Not applicable

5) (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5) : Rs. 223.31 Lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :
Rs. 4.47 Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities : Nil
of the previous financial years.

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] : Rs. 4.47 Lakhs




6) (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than
Ongoing Project) : Rs. 10,000/ -
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] : Rs.10,000/-
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent
Total
;; I::: ?:r ;rr:':slfﬁ::;:: Amount transferred to any fund
the Unspent CSR Account as Schedul V:Ip weified unde; 3
Finanelal per chedule as per :;;on proviso to
Year section 135(6) section 135(5).

Amount Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) Transfer the fund (in Rs.) transfer
10,000 4,36,630 09.04.2025 - -

f) Excess amount for set off, if any
: Amount
S.No. | Particular (in Rs.)
() Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 4 46 630
section 135(5) T

(ii | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 10,000

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year ((ii)-(i)) Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil

activities of the previous financial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years .
(v) sure g Nil

((iii)-(iv))

7) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceeding three financial years:

Amount
Amount | Balance transferred to
transferr | amount a fund as Amount
ed to in Amount specified remaining | -
S. | Preceeding Unspent | unspent | spent in under to be i:nlcc
No |. Financial CSR CSR the Schedule VII | spent in v
Year(s) Account | amount | Financial | as per section | suycceeding if"
under under Year 135(5), if any | financial
section | section (in Rs.) Date years any
135(6) 135(6) Amount | of (in Rs.)
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) (in Rs.) | tran
sfer
N NA
-




8) Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

9) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of
the average net profit as per section 135(5). - Not applicable

For and on behalf of theyBoard of Directors,

Di.M.J.Arunkumar
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03608603)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
M/S HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Opinion ‘

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. HANNAH JOSEPH
HOSPITAL LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and statement , cash flows and the Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its Profit and cash flows and the Statement of Changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.0ur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide separate opinion on these matters.

Ph.: 0452-4355098 Mob: 93626 27161, 98654 15555
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Appropriateness of | We have performed procedures and tests to ascertain cost and
capitalization of costs. expenditure which are to be capitalized and found no variation.

Test for impairment of | The company business operations are highly technology centric and
Assets have conducted test to understand any impairment of the assets used
by the company. On such tests we found that all the assets are used
by the company as intended by them and there are no impairment.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises of the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance/ conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, ‘our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows and Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards(IND-AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended.

Ph.: 0452-4355098 Mob: 93626 27161, 98654 15555
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Ph.: 0452-4355098 Mob: 93626 27161, 98654 15555
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

\
—t
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conséquences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) order,2020(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 we give in Annexure- A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, We report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the Company has not maintained
audit trail in its accounting system for maintenance of financial records.

c. The Company has no branches , hence separate branch auditor has not been appointed.

d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

e. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 as amended from time to time.

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31**March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

Ph.: 0452-4355098 Mob: 93626 27161, 98654 15555 ™
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g. With respect to the adequécy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in respect of whether the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
Provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable, as the company has followed
Schedule V, and has passed special resolution approving the remuneration ,hence the
remuneration is within the limits prescribed in the Companies Act.

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 3 (Significant Accounting Policies) to the financial
statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

i. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ties), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’ , with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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ii. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity (ties), including
foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

e) The Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended dividend for the Financial
Year ending 31-Mar-2025.

f) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31**March 2025, which does
not have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same is under
implementation.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1*
April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is applicable
for the year ended 31%March 2025 but the company has not implemented audit trail and there
are no data of audit trail held for the period under audit.

2.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED of even date)

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Companyismaintaini:gpmperrecordsshowingfuﬂpartiaﬂa&hmhﬂing
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company has an Intangible Asset i.e., Computer Software and Trade mark
which has been recognised at Cost.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and
Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such vetification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on examination of the records of the company that in respect of title Deeds for the

immovable Properties of Land and Buildings are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year-end.
Accordingly, Paragraph 3(i){d) of the arder is not applicable.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(i){e) of the order is not applicable.
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ii. In respect of Company’s Inventories:

(a)As explained to us the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed on such verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of Security of Current Assets at any
point of time during the year. The Company is having Overdraft facility which is not secured by
current assets and it is only against FD. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made investments in / provided any guarantee /security or granted any loan or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(iii) of the order is not applicable and
therefore reporting under 3(iii) (a, b, ¢, d, e, f and g) are not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any
investments to which the provision of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.
Accordingly, Paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year.
Accordingly, Paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of cost records have been prescribed by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the activities of the company and the company has
maintained the same.
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vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

(a) Amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, Income tax, sales
tax, Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate
authorities. However, during the year there are delay in deposit of tax deducted at source
under the Income Tax Act and Payment of Tax under Goods and Service Tax which has also
been disclosed in the Draft Red herring Prospectus filed by the Company.

(b) No undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in the Books of Account that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 (43 of 1961).
Accordingly, Paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable.

ix. @) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Term
loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were availed.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised
on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

e) The Company does not have any Subsidiaries/Associates /Joint ventures and accordingly
paragraphs 3 ix (e) and 3(ix) (f) of the order is not applicable.
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x. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a) of the order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or Private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (x) (b) of the order is not applicable.

xi. a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
me, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been
noticed or reported during the year and hence reporting under 3(xi)(a) is not applicable.

b) Since there is no fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company by any
person has been noticed or reported during the year, paragraph 3(xi)(b) of the order is not
applicable. '

b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no whistle — blower complaints have been received by the company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
companies Act, 2013. Where applicable, and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. The Company has an Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its
business and reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as
part of our audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable.
L
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xvi. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanationé given to us, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC)as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and the Company is neither a part of any
Group nor does it form any group with any other entity and there is no Core investment
company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the order is not
applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and also in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. During the year, the previous statutory auditor tendered their resignation owing to the
Company’s plans for an Initial Public Offer and the consequent requirement of engaging a
peer-reviewed audit firm.

xix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of Financial Ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, there are no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of Balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the Balance sheet date.
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xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,Corporate
Social responsibility is applicable on the company due to net profits of the company
meeting the criteria and the company has transferred the amount of unspent corporate
social responsibility amount to a separate bank account.

xxi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the clause is
not applicable as the Company has no subsidiaries/associates or joint venture companies
and accordingly paragraph (xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

Reasons for unfavourable or qualified audit report:
1. Expression of Opinion on any specified matter is NIL and this clause does not arise.

Place : MADURAI

Date: 30.08.2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report to the Members of HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED of even date)

Report on the intemnal Financiat Controls Over Financiat Reporting under Clause(i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HANNAH JOS-EPH
HOSPITAL LIMITED{"the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

1. Corporate Information

-M/s HANNAH JOSPEH HOSPITAL LIMITED (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company
domiciled in India. Its registered office is situated at LAKE VIEW ROAD, Madurai — 625 020, Tamil
Nadu, India. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies
Act and it is an unlisted company. The Company is primarily engaged in health care services by
running an hospital.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 and other relevant provision of the Act. All
restatement of figures as required under the act are carried out and disclosure requirements are
complied with.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of Financial
Statements of the Gompany for the year ended 31st March 2025. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention under accrual
basis accounting except for certain financial assets (as per accounting policy below), which have
been measured at cost. The financial statements are prepared based on the going concern basis,
since themanagement has no plans to wind up the operations.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of
goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The company has adopted Ind AS reporting. All the restatement of figures as required under the
act arecarried out as per Ind As.
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Current versus non-current classification

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set outin the Schedule Il to the:
Companies Act, 2013. Based'on the nature of the products and time between the acquisition of
assets for processing their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the company has

determined its operating cycles as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto.
The management believes that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent.
However, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates
is recognised prospectively in the current and future period. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revenue recognition
Performance Obligations

The revenue is recognized on fulfilment of performance obligation. Revenues exclude taxes and
duties collected on behalf of the government.

Supply of Services and Sales of Products

The company earns revenue primarily from payment against service rendered to patients and
from sale of Medicine. Payments for the sale is generally received on delivery and the credit has
been selectively extended.

The credit period is generally short term. Thus there is no significant financing component.

Revenue is recognized when the performance obligations are satisfied and the control of the
goods transferred, being when the goods are delivered as per the relevant terms of the contract
at which point in time the Company has a right to receive for the goods, customer has
possession and legal title to the goods,customer bears significant risk and rewards of ownership
and the customer has accepted the goods or theCompany has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

Significant judgements

There are no significant judgements made by the Company in determining the timing of
satisfaction of performance obligation. It is determined as per the terms of the contract.
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Interest Income

Interest income from Fixed deposits with various commercial banks and other financial
institutions are recognized based on accrual basis.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including land, buildings, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Freehold
Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at
cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation / amortization and
impairment, if any. Such assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for its intended use. Cost includes purchase price,
taxes and duties, labour cost and directly attributable overheads incurred upto the date the
asset is ready for its intended use.Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economicbenefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Profit
and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. Gains or Losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit and loss
within other income / expense.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets have been charged on the Written down value method for the
completed period of life as stated in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013. No Depreciation has
been provided on the fixed assets sold during the year.

Impairment of Assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable
value. An impairment loss is charged to Profit & Loss account in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired.

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change
in theestimate of recoverable amount. During the year there is no impairment of Assets.

Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates, i.e. Indian Rupees (INR) and all values
are rounded off to the nearest lakhs except otherwise indicated.
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Cash and cash equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash onhand, fixed deposits held with commercial banks for less than 12 months,
Stamps, other short- term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Lease
The company’s leasing arrangements are in respect of financing lease for Cath lab and MRI
machine.

Borrowing Cost

The Company treats its borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset to form part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are accounted in the period in which they are incurred.

Accounting for Taxes on income

Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred Income taxes reflect the impact of current year differences between taxable income
and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, for temporary differ-
ences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is possible that further taxable
amount will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Current and deferred
tax is recognised in profit and loss.

Prior period items and change in accounting policies

All items of income and expenses in the period are included in determination of net profit for
the period, unless specifically mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements or is required by
an Indian Accounting Standard. Prior period items are Nil

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the company (the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding (the denominator) during the period.
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Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Employee Benefits
Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
services and are recognized in respect of the employee’s services upto the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment obligations
Defined benefit plan

Gratuity : The Company has no Gratuity Fund. No Policy has been taken with Insurance
Companyto cover the Gratuity liability and incremental gratuity payable have been recognized
as expense in the year based on the years of service and Gratuity liability is provided for
employees who ha\;e worked for more than five years .The Company has not carried out
actuarial valuation at end of each reporting period starting from the current year.

Defined Contribution Fund

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation fund and Employee State
Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution fund and are charged as an expense
based on the amount of contribution required to be made for services rendered by the
employees.

Bonus Plan

The company recogines bonus payment as revenue expenditure .

Share-based payments

It is not applicable, since the Company doesn’t have any share-based payment schemes.
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments -and items of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities),
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting ‘

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The company has only one segment, so the company has
not prepared a separate Segment Report.

Related party disclosure
1. Sri. DR. MJ. ARUNKUMAR-Managing Director
2. Smt. Dr.Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar-Whole time director
3. Sri. Daniel Fenn-CFO

Nature of To MD To WTD To CFO
payment

Salary 49500000 1813500
Professional fee 7215000 | 5939350

Interest 594616 46982

Perquisites 1007618

Rent 15930000

Total 74250234 | 5986332 | 1813500

Discontinuing Operations
The Company has not discontinued any operation during the reporting period or previous period

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is possible that there will be an out-
flow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes.
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments not provided for
Claims against company not acknowledged as debts

The company has filed applications under Companies Act for compounding of offenses for
which the company has not made provisions which may result in outflow of significant resources

The future cash flows on the above items are determined only on receipt of the decisions /
judgements that are pending at various forums / authorities. The Company does not expect the
outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial results.

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. M.JMArNnkumar
Chairman & Manaying Director
(DIN: 03608603)

For HANNAH JOSEZ%HO(S_FITAL LIMITED \;‘ S

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fen\n Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)



Other Money on which the Company is contingently liable: Nil
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for — Nil

On Investments — Nil

Reconciliation between Stock Statement submitted to Bank and Book Stock is not applicable as
no Credit Limit availed on Stock held.

The Company does not use “Crypto Currency” or “Virtual Currency”

Since long term loans are availed the disclosure regarding maturity within 12 months done
accordingly.

Others
a.Value of imported and indigenous Capital Goods

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Imported

Capital Good‘s 7748578 -
Indigenous

Capital Goods 175416842 23378903

b. Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development(MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under : As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year Nil Nil

(i) The are no delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during the
year

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

c.The Company is not having any sole selling agent for marketing its services
. d.Additional Regulatory Information

i) All the properties are held in the earlier name of the Company and/ in the present name of the
company.

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

o For HANNAH ;QSEPngP_m LIMITED \ -

Dr. MMJ. Ar\nkumar
Chairman & Managing Directar
(DIN: 03608602)

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
— (DIN: 03608651)



ii) The Company does not hold any Investment Property for the reporting period.
i) The Company has not revalued the Properties, Plant and Equipment during the year

iv) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) — Ageing Schedule is attached with the notes of accounts
and The CWIP are executed as per schedule and the cost are as per the original plan.

v) The Company has no Intangible Assets under development as on 31.03.2025.

vi) Details of Benami Property held-NIL. There is no proceedings have been initiated against the
company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988
(45 of 1988) and the rules made there under.

vii) The Company has only borrowed from Banks against Fixed Deposit and Machinery.

viii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies - There is no charges or
satisfaction pending for registration with the Registrar of Companies.

ix) Compliance with number of layers of Companies - The Company has complied with the
number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

x) Compliance with approval scheme(s) or Arrangements - The Company has not entered into
any approval scheme or Arrangements during the year.

xi) Utilization of Borrowed funds and Share Premium —Borrowed funds are fully utilized for
intended business purposes. During the year share issue expenses amounting to Rs.9865662 has
been appropriated against share premium balance.

e. Undisclosed Income: There is no undisclosed income during the reporting period.

f. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current
year’s classification, if any.

g. Figures have been rounded off to lakh.

Date : 30/08/2025

Place : Madurai

For HANNAH JOSERH HOSPITAL LIMITED Eor HANNAH JOSE HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. MJ. Ardokumar K Arunkumar
e avitha Fehn
Chairman & Managing Director Dr. Fen\?\lhole-ﬁme Director

(DIN: 03608603) (DIN: 03608651)




HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated

Chairman & Mana}ing Diractor
(DIN: 03608603)

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 013R08651)

Note As at As at
Particulars No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 6,5637.07 6,090.32
(b) Right to Use Asset 309.33 437.33
(¢) Intangible assets 71.88 1.74
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 63.72 -
(c) Investment Property - -
(d) Goodwill - -
(e) Other Intangible assets - -
(€3] Intangible assets under development - -
(g) Financial assets - -
) Investments 6 - -
(i) Loans - -
(iii) Trade receivables - -
@iv) Deferred tax assets (net) - -
V) Other non-current assets 1 650.61 508.48
(h) Deffered Tax Asset - 63.11
Total Non-current assets 7,632.28 7,097.98
Current assets
(@) Inventories 8 148.25 137.47
(b) Financial assets v
i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade receivables 9 897.37 796.74
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,162.00 868.44
@iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 11 - -
W) Loans and advances 12 14.70 -
(c) Current tax assets (net) - -
(d)  Other current assets 13 74.64 96.16
Total Current assets 2,296.96 1,898.81
TOTAL ASSETS 9,929.24 8,996.79
For HANNAH JOS HOSPITAL LIMITED k4 j
# For HANNAH JOSEPH HQSPITAL LIMITED I'Z L7\
/ / =0 (X
Dr. M.3. Ardpkumar LY% 1R i N 4 il




Note As at As at
Particulars No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
HEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@)  Equity Share capital 14 1,669.84 1,669.84
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature - -
(¢)  Other Equity 15 3,5623.83 2,901.49
Total Equity 5,193.67 4,571.33
Liabilities .
Non-current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liablities
(1) Borrowings 16 2,819.87 2,672.47
(ia) Lease Liability 16A 328.28 464.15
(i1) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of MSME - -
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME - -
(111) Other Financial liabilities - -
(b)  Provisions - -
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - -
(d) Other non current liabilities - -
Total Non-current Liabilities 3,148.14 3,136.63
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liablities
(1) Borrowings 16B 538.08 493.17
(ia) Lease Liability - -
(ii) Trade payables 17 - -
Total Outstanding dues of MSME 1.46 0.60
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 283.19 258.06
(1i1) Other Financial liabilities - -
(b)  Other current liabilities 18 266.06 257.64
(c) Provisions 19 498.64 279.37
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) d
Total Current Liabilities 1,887.43 1,288.83
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,929.24 8,996.79
Corporate Information 1
Basis of preparation of financial statement 2 - -
Significant Accounting Policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

UDIN: 25223529BMLESJ5523
for A.V.SUBRAMANIAN-& CO
FRN:0106435 P

X f

CA.PADMA ( Partner)=——"
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
Membership No. 223529

DR.M.J ARUNKUMAR
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 03608603

CS. YUDRA.] ARAVANAN

COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. 66149
PLACE: MADURAI
DATE: 30/08/2025

Y

DR.FENN KAVITHA FENN ARUNKUMAR

WHOLE - TIME DIRECTOR

DIN 03608651

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PAN:AAPPF7662L




HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31st March, 2025

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the For the
Particulars No. | Year Ended | Year Ended
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Continuing Operations
1 Revenue from operations 20 7,753.13 6,340.78
)i Other income 21 36.92 22.02
III  |Net gain on de-recongnition of financial assets
at amortized cost - -
IV |Net gain on reclassification of financial assets - -
v Total Income (I+II+III+IV) 7,790.05 6,362.80
VI |Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 22 - -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 22a 1,165.66 913.89
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 23 -10.78 11.54
Employee benefits expenses 24 912.17 663.96
Finance costs 25 347.07 479.18
Depreciation and Amortization 26 724.11 821.37
Impairment losses - -
Net loss on de-recongnition of financial assets at
Amortized Expenses -
Net gain on reclassification of financial assets - -
Other expenses 27 3,617.09 2,937.98
Total expenses (VI) 6,755.32 5,828.49
VII  |Profit before exception items and tax 1,034.73 534.31
VIII  |Exceptional items = -
IX  |Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII +VIII) 1,034.73 534.31
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,034.73 534.31
X Tax expenses
a) Current tax 28(a) 250.20 0.69
b) Current tax adjustment to earlier years 28(b) 0.43 -
c) Deferred tax 63.11 126.97
XI  |Profit/(Loss) for the period continuing operations (IX - X) 720.99 406.65
XII  |Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations - -
XIII |Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
XIV  |Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (XII - XIII) - -
XV Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 720.99 406.65
C/o
For HANNAR JO

HOSEAAL LIMITED

Dr. M.J. Ardpkumar

Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN: 03608603)

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)
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Particulars

Note
No.

For the
Year Ended
31.03.2025

For the

1cas
T_a_23

21 na nanna

C/f

a) Basic
b) Diluted

a) Basic
b) Diluted

a) Basic
b) Diluted

Other comprehensive income (OCI)

A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Fair value change of Equity Instruments
(i) Remeasurement of employee defined benefits

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XV+ XVI)(Comprising Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)

Earnings per equity share: ( for contined operation) (of Rs.10 each)

Earnings per equity share ( for discontined opration)

Earnings per equity share ( for discontined & Continuing operation)

30

Rs.
Rs.

Rs.

720.99

406.65

4.32
4.32

4.32
4.32

2.44
2.44

2.44
2.44

For and on behalf of the Board

UDIN: 25223529BMLESJ5523
for A.V.SUBRAMANIAN-&-CO

FRN:010643S

e

CA.PADMA ( Partner)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
Membership No. 223529

PLACE: MADURAI
DATE: 30/08/2025

>

DR.M.J ARUNKUMAR
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN 03608603
- /
CD'U’V SARAVANAN

COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. 66149

DR.FENN KAVITHA FENN ARUNKUMAR
WHOLE - TIME DIRECTOR

DIN 03608651

\
1y

DANIEL g\#}{ﬂmn FENN

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PAN:AAPPF1662L




CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Name of the Company : Hannah Joseph Hospital Private Limited

Current Reporting Previous reporting
PARTICULARS Period Period
31.3.2025 31.3.2024
I. Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Net Profit before Tax & Extraordinary Items 1035 534
Adjustments for:
Interest paid 347 480
Depreciation 724 821
1071 1301
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2106 1835
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories -11 12
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables -101 -241
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 22 3
(Increase)/Decrease in ShortTerm Loan & Adv. -15 -817
Increasel/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 219 12
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 26 -19
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 8 17
149 -1033
Cash generated from Operations 2285 803
Less: Taxation 314 0
Net Cash From / (Used) in Operating Activities 1941 803
Il. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets -1149 -234
Capital Work in Progress -64 0
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Loans and Advances -145 -126
-1358 -360
Net Cash From / (Used) in Investing Activities -1358 -360
11l. Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Interest paid -347 -480
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 12 -292
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 45 509
Net Cash From / (Used) in Financing Activities -290 -262
Summary:
Net Cash From / (Used) in Operating Activities 1941 803
Net Cash From / (Used) in Investing Activities -1358 -360
Net Cash From / (Used) in Financing Activities -290 -262
Net increase in Cash(/+11+11) 294 180
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 868 688
Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 1162 868
Other than Cash Equivalents at.the end of the year

UDIN: 25223529 BMLESIS523
For A.V.SUBRAMANIAN®CO |
FRN:0106438 ..

A ::7 4
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
4 Property , Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment
. Land Buildings * | Plantand Furniture and Vehicles Office Total
Particulars . . .
Equipment Fixtures equipment
Cost as at April 1,2023 5,195.01 3,347.48 660.13 38.01 242.34 9,482.97
Additions 166.36 56.85 5.21 B 4.72 233.14
Disposals - - B - - -
Cost as at March 31,2024 (R) - 5,361.37 3,404.33 665.34 38.01 247.06 9,716.11
Additions 772.11 119.86 125.29 13.53 29.34 3.42 1,063.54
Disposals ) - 30.00 - . = 30.00
Cost as at March 31,2025 (B) 772.11 5,481.23 3,499.62 678.87 67.35 250.48 10,749.65
Depreciation as at April 1,2023 - 606.89 1,770.84 349.71 29.83 175.49 2,932.75
Charge for the year - 241.23 335.98 81.10 2.33 32.40 693.04
Disposals - - - - - -
Depreciation as at March 31,2024 (C) - 848.12 2,106.82 430.81 32.16 207.89 3,625.79
Charge for the year - 223.89 270.88 63.14 10.07 18.80 586.79
Disposals - - - - - - -
Depreciation as at March 31,2025 (D ) - 1,072.01 2,377.69 493.95 42.24 226.69 4,212.58
Net Block .
As at March 31,2024 (A-C) - 4513.25 1,297.51 234.53 5.85 39.17 6,090.32
As at March 31,2025 (B-D) 772.11 4,409.23 1,121.92 184.92 25.11 23.79 6,537.07

* Title deeds of all land & Buildings are held in the name of the Company and / in the earlier name of the Company.

Right to Use Asset

Particulars MACHINERY
Cost as at April 1,2023 896.00
Additions
Disposals
Cost as at March 31,2024 (A) 896.00
Additions -
Disposals ' -
Cost as at March 31,2025 (B) 896.00
Depreciation as at April 1,2023 330.67
Charge for the year 128.00
Disposals
Depreciation as at March 31,2024 (C) 458.67
Charge for the year 128.00 Fiif HANNAH JOS OSPITAL LIMITED
Disposals By -
Depreciation as at March 31,2025 (D) 586.67 / For HANNAH JOSEP P)TAL LIMITE
Net Block Dr. Nk J. Afnkumar
As at March 31,2024 (A-C) 437.33 ~hairman & Managing Director Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Be 2t March 31,2085 o %09.39 " (DIN: 03608603) Whole-time Director

(DIN: 03608651)
Intangible Assets

Patticilars Trademark Software Total
Cost as at April 1,2023 0.03 13.30 13.33
Additions 0.28 0.65 0.93
Disposals - -
Cost as at March 31,2024 (A) 0.31 13.95 14.26
Additions - 79.19 79.19
Disposals - 0.06 0.06
Cost as at March 31,2025 (B) 0.31 93.08 93.39
Depreciation as at April 1,2023 0.02 12.17 12.19
Charge for the year 0.03 0.30 0.33
Disposals - -
Depreciation as at March 31,2024 (C) 0.05 12.47 12.52 ;
Charge for the year 0.03 9.29 9.32 '\" \_y’ 3
Disposals - - |1
Depreciation as at March 31,2025 (D ) 0.08 21.76 21.84
Net Block
As at March 31,2024 (A-C) 0.26 1.48 1.74
As at March 31,2025 (B-D) 0.23 71.32 71.55




For HANNAH JOSE

Dr. M.J. Arunkumar
Chairman & Managi
(DIN: 03608603)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025| 31.03.2024
5 Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress 63.72 -
Total 63.72 -
Refer Note No. 31(a) for information relating to Ageing Schedule and Completion schedule
6 Non-current Investments
a. quoted Equity Shares - d
b. Unquoted Equity Shares - -
c¢. Mutual funds- - -
d. Others = A
Total - -
Note : Fair Market Value
Equity Shares = e
Mutual Funds - -
Total Fair Market Value - -
7 Other non—cun:em financial assets
a. Bank deposit Maturity above 12 months - -
b. In earmarked bank accounts
- Unpaid Dividend A/c (Current A/c with bank) - -
Long Term Loans & Advances
a.Advances 72.82 715.61
b.Deposit with Land Lords and Electricity Department 268.74 238.05
c.Staff Loan 7.94 13.29
d. Deferred IPO expenditure 301.11 178.53
Total 650.61 505.48

SPITAL LIMITED

hn/“

For HANNAH JOSEPLH\$>SP<TAL LIMITED

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)

Director



As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025| 31.03.2024
8 Inventories
a. Medicines at Pharmacy and Ward 85.40 79.81
b. Medicine at Cathlab and Operation theater 43.21 45.12
c. Other Consumables 0.80 0.51
d. Stores and spares 18.83 12.02
Total 148.25 137.47
9 Trade Receivables
a.Trade Receivables Considered good - Secured - -
b.Trade Receivables Considered good - Unsecured * 647.13 618.78
c.Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit
risk and - -
d.Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 250.24 177.96
897.37 796.74
Less: Allowance for expected Credit Loss - -
8917.37 796.74

Trade Receivables stated above include debts due by :
Directors

Other officers of the Company

Firm in which director is a partner

Company in which director is a member

Refer Note No. 31(b) for the Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables

TAL LIMITED
For HANNAH JOS HOSPI
o

=

Dr. M.J. Alunkumar
: laging Director
Chairman & Managing
(DIN: 03608803)

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)

For HANNAH JOSEPR\JQSPITAL LIMITED




As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
10 Cash and cash equivalents
a. Cash on hand 29.27 13.78
b. Cheques, drafts on hand - -
c. Balances with banks
i) In current accounts 732.48 454.41
i1) In deposit accounts
- Maturity below 12 month 400.25 400.25
Total 1,162.00 868.44
11 Bank balance other than above Note No. 10
a) In earmarked bank accounts
- Dividend A/c (Current A/c with bank) - -
Total - -
12 Loans & Advances
a. Loans and advances to related parties - -
b. Advances for Purchases
Secured - Capital advance for machinery - -
Secured - Others - -
Unsecured - -
c. Balance with government authorities
Unsecured, Considered good
- Deposit with Government Departments - -
d. Trade Deposit - -
e. Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, Considered
good 14.70 -
Total 14.70 -
13 Other Current Assets
Advance Paid to Suppliers - -
Interest Receivable 0.24 0.26
- TDS from insurance Company' 1.36 0.90
TDS deducted for Payee 1.57 1.83
Income Tax Refund Receivable 71.48 93.16
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) - -
Total 74.64 _96.16]
For HANNAK JOEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH JOSﬁE}?&iQSPITAL LIMITED * L'

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumas
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)

Dr. M.J. Rrunkumar
: 2 i Director
Chairman & M nag'f‘g
(DIN: 03 08603)



(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

14 Equity Share capital

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Number of

Number of

Particulars o Amount Shases Amount
A |Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 2,50,00,000 2,500 | 2,00,00,000 2,000
B |Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,66,98,363 1,670 | 1,66,98,363 1,670
Total 1,66,98,363 1,670 | 1,66,98,363 1,670
C The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Number Number
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,66,98,363 1,66,98,363
Shares Issued during the year - -
Shares bought back during the year - -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,66,98,363 1,66,98,363

.

D The details of Shareholders holding more than 5%

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Name of Shareholder No. of No. of
9 i % of Holdi
Shares held | /* OFHOIAING | ¢\ oc heta | 7 Of Holding
Dr Moses Jospeh Arunkumar 1,61,62,928 90.80%| 1,54,79,925 92.70%
D.1 Shares Held by Promotor
As at 31 March 2025
o % Change
il Promotor's Name No of shares # oftatal during the
No. shares
year
1 |DrMoses Jospeh Arunkumar 1,61,62,925 90.80% 1.90%
2 |Dr.Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar 4,32,000 2.59% NIL
As at 31 March 2024
0,
Sr % of total % (?hange
Promotor's Name No of shares during the
No. shares
year
1 |Dr Moses Jospeh Arunkumar 1,54,79,925 92.70% NIL
2 |Dr.Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar 4,32,000 2.59% NIL

E The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par

value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

For HANNAH JOSPPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

/

Dr. MtJ. Axunkumar
Chairman & Mangging Director
(DIN: 03608602)

For HANNAH JOSEP

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar

&)

Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)

HOSPITAL LIMITED



For HANNAH JOSEPHHOSPITAL LIMITED

Chairman & Managin
(DIN: 036088602)

As at As at

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
15 Other Equity
A.Securities Premium
Opening Balance 1,013.36 338.74
(+) Issue of Shares - 674.63
(-) Expenses on Private Placement 98.66 -
Closing Balance 914.71 1,013.36
B. Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance = -
(+) Change during the year - -
Closing Balance - -
C.Profit & Loss A/c
Opening balance 1,888.14 1,481.48
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 720.99 406.65
(-) Interim Dividend paid - =
(-) Final Dividend declered in AGM _ _
(-) Provision for Dividend Tax Payable - -
(-) Dividend Tax Paid for earlier year - -
(-) Transfer to Reserves = =
Closing Balance 2,609.12 1,888.13

Total 3,523.83 2,901.49

For HANNAH JOSEP&'TAL LIMITED

=y —— Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)




As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2025| 31.03.2024
16.Borrowings
Term Loans Secured 5 -
From Banks 2,535.62 2,613.95
From Others - 31.52
(Term loans are secured by hypothecation of fixed
assets)
Total 2,535.62 2,645.47
Unsecured
From Director and shareholder 278.25
Deposit 6.00 27.00
Total 2,819.87 2,672.47
16A .Lease Liabilities
Opening Liabilities 464.15 589.80
ADD: Interest 31.66 41.89
Less : Repayment 167.53 167.53
328.28 464.15
16B. Short Term Borrowings
From Banks
Current Maturities of Long term Debt 146.56 332.19
Working Capital loan against Fixed deposit 360.00 -
From Others
Current Maturities of Long term Debt 31.52 160.97
538.08 493.17
17 Trade Payable
(A) Total Outstanding dues to MSME 1.46 0.60
(B) Total Outstanding dues to creditors other than MSME 283.19 258.06
(C) Disputed dues to MSME - -
(D) Disputed dues to Others - -
Total 284.65 258.66

and outstanding as at the reporting date.

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent the Company has
received intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Act. There are nointerest due

Refer Note No. 31 (c) for the Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables

18 Other Current Liabilities

Advance from Customers 266.06 257.64
Total 266.06 257.64
19 Provisions
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Salary 73.99 57.79
Gratuity 25.66 21.08
E.P.F&E.S.I 10.44 8.07
(b) Proposed Dividend - -
(c) Others
Proposed Dividend - -
GST Payable 10.83 9.61
TDS / TCS Payable 35.37 26.15
Provision for CSR 4.37
Outstanding Expenses 178.18 131.85
Provision for Taxation (net) 159.81 24.81
Total 498.64 279.37
For HANNAH JOSKRH SPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH JOSEP&P&TAL LIMITED A
\ JL—

Dr. M.J. Ar nku'mar_
Chairman & Managing Diractor

(DIN: 03608603) (DIN: 03608651)

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director




For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
20 Revenue from Operations
a) Hospital and Clinical Services 5,735.58 4,730.67
b) Sale of Medicine 1,965.67 1,5665.60
c) Sale of Food 51.87 44.51
Total 1,7153.13 6,340.78
21 Other Income
Interest Income 19.75 4.87
Interst - Income tax 1.74 -
Interest others 3.08
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 2.66
Other non-operating income 12.35 14.49
(net of expenses directly attributable to such income)
Total 36.92 22.02
22 Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Stock - =
Add : Purchases - -
Less : Closing Stock - -
Total - =
22a Purchase of Trading Stock 1,165.66 913.89
23 Changes in inventories of finished goods
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock of Traded Goods 137.46 149.01
137.46 149.01
Closing Stock of Finished Goods 148.25 137.46
148.25 137.46
Increase (-) / (+) Decrease in Stock -10.18 11.54

For HANNAH JOSBPH HOSPITAL LIMITED
/

Dr. M.J. Arunkumar
Chairman & Ma aging Director
(DIN: 03 08603)

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director

(DIN: 03608651)




24 Emplovee Benefit Expenses

Salaries and Wages 771.36 561.78
Bonus 36.87 30.95
Staff welfare 31.63 14.42
Contribution to Employees Provident Fund 53.34 41.83
Contribution to Employees State Insurance Scheme 14.39 11.15
Provision for Gratuity Fund 4.57 3.83
Total 912.117 663.96
25 Finance Cost
Interest on bank loan 250.42 398.45
Interst on Lease 31.66 41.89
Interest on other loans 26.38 19.77
Interest Others 21.59 3.99
Bank Charges 17.03 15.65
Total 3471.07 479.75
26 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 586.79 693.04
b) On right to use asset and Intangible Assets 137.32 128.33
Total 724.11 821.37
For HANNAH JOSBPH HOSPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH Joswgp\m LIMITED
X A -
Dr. M.J. Ayunkumar Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar

Chairman & Mamaging’ Director
(DIN: 03608603)

Whole-time Director

(DIN: 03608651)




For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
27 Other Expenses
Operation Expenses
Stores and Spares 508.78 334.86
Lab charges ' 31.40 31.80
House keeping and ward expesnes 115.78 107.51
Power & Fuel 297.94 301.48
Lease rent-Land 121.74 119.40
Lease rent -building 44.40 44.40
Consulting charges to doctors 1,177.79 868.44
A 2,297.83 1,807.90
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Business Promotions incl Advertising 123.79 39.25
Donations 1.01 7.34
B 124.80 46.59
Establishment Expenses
Repairs to Buildings 137.30 56.11
Repairs to Machinery 127.86 137.37
Remuneration to Managing Director 495.00 348.00
Printing and Statinery 36.60 -
Postage & Telephones 10.31 9.94
Legal and Secretarial 17.64 10.66
Travelling Expenses 35.71 5.96
Goods and Service tax 51.44 -
Rates Taxes and License Fees 52.91 40.81
Insurance 3.18 6.45
Audit Fee
Statutory Audit 3.00 1.62
Certification 1.98 -
Others 3.80 -
Professional & Other Service Charges 14.73 -
Directors' Sitting Fees 4.90 -
Bad debts 132.37
Miscellaneous Expenses 61.24 345.59
Consulting Charges to Directors - 121.29
Loss on Sale of Asset 0.06 -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses refer Note 27(a) 4.47 -
c 1,194.46 1,083.50
Total[A+B+ C] _.3,617.09 2,937.98

For HANNAH JOSEPHWNOSPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH JOSEP HO‘”EETAL LIMITED

Dr. Fenn-Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)

Dr. M.J. Arunku ar
Chairman & Managi‘ng’ Director
(DIN: 03608603)



27 (a) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

(1) Gross amount required to be spent on CSR expenditure in
accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

(i1) Amount unspent/ (excess spent) carried forward from earlier
years

(iii) Amount actually spent during the year on
a) Conservation of Natural Resource (i.e. water)
b) Promotion of Education

c) Others

(iv) Excess amount spent / (unspent)

4.417

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise state)

For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
28 Tax Expenses - Current Tax
a) Current year provision 250.20 0.69
b)Current tax adjustment to earlier years 0.43
(+) Advance Tax for earlier year - IT - -
(-) Provision for Taxation released - IT - -
(-) IT Refund Received - -
29 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
30.0Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items not to be reclassified to Profit or Loss :
Gains / (losses) on Listed Shares and Mutual Funds - -
Gratuity Provisions - -
Total - -
Eor HANNAH JOAEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED }
// L ‘L S
Dr. M.J.\arunkumar Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director

(DIN: 03608603)

(DIN: 03608651)




a) Ageing schedule of Capital Work In Progress (CWIP)

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in'Progress (CWIP) March 2025

31 Additional regulatory and other information as required by the Schedule ITI
to the Companies Act 2013

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Projects temporarily suspended

cwip Less than 1 2-3 More than Total
1-2 years
year Years 3 years
Projects in progress 63.72 - - - 63.72
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Note: The Company do not have any projects whose activity has been suspended.
Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) March 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 2-3 More than Total
1-2 years
year Years 3 years
Projects in progress 0.00 - - - 0.00

Note: The Company does not have any project whose activity has been suspended.

For HANNAH JOS

Dr. M.JY Ayunkumar

Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 036D8603)

H HOSPITAL LIMITED

i

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)




(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
31 (b) Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
Months

6 Months -
1Year

1-2
Years

2-3 Years

More than
3 Years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

519.68

126.00

1.44

647.13

Undisputed Trade Receivables:
which have significant increase in
credit risk and considered
doubtful

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Credit impaired

236.51

13.73

250.24

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

0.00

Disputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant
increase in credit risk and
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivables
Credit impaired

519.68

362.51

1.44

13.73

891.317

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
Months

6 Months -
1Year

1-2
Years

2-3 Years

More than
3 Years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

551.06

51.36

18.71

0.60

618.79

Undisputed Trade Receivables:-
which have significant increase in
credit risk and considered
doubtful

167.80

10.16

177.96

Undisputed Trade Recelvables-
Credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant
increase in credit risk and
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivables
Credit impaired

551.06

51.36

183.517

10.76

7196.14

For HANNAH JOSEPHWQOSPITAL LIMITED

o

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. M.J. Arunk mar
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03608603)

Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fen Arunkumar
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608651)




31c) Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables

As at March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
MSME - - - - -
Others 283.19 - - - 283.19
Dispute dues-MSME - - - - -
Dispute dues -Others - - - - -
Total 283.19 - - - 283.19

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
MSME - - - - -
Others 258.06 - - - 258.06
Dispute dues-MSME - - - - -
Dispute dues -Others - - - - -
Total 258.06 - - - 258.06

d) Proceedings under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder

e) Borrowings from banks

Company does not have any outstanding borrowings from banks or financial institutions
at any time during the year on the basis of security of current assets.

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or
other lenders.

f) Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company did not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248
of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 considering the
information available with the Company.

OSPITAL LIMITED

For HANNAH JORN? For HANNAH JOSEE{L ROSPITAL LIMITED i

/./ > L
Dr. M.J. Arunkumar Dr. Eenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar
Chairman & Managing Directer Whole-time Dlrect‘or
: (DIN: 0260%603) (DIN: 03608651)




h. Key Financial Ratios

Unit of

Ratio Numerator | Denominator | Current Period | Previous Period | % Variance
Measurement
(a) Current ratio In Multiple 2296.96 1587.43 1.45 1.47 -1.58%
(b) Debt-equity ratio In Multiple 3686.22 5193.66 0.71 0.79 -10.58%
(c) Debt service coverage ratio In Multiple 1445.09 489.24 2.95 1.46 101.96%
(d) Return on equity ratio In Percentage 720.98 4882.49 15.00% 6.15% 143.79%
(e) Inventory turnover ratio In Days 7753.13 142.86 7 33 -79.59%
Egt;l:ade. receivables turnover In Days 7753.13 847.06 40 144 -72.29%
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio In Days 1165.66 270.62 85 107 -20.80%
(h) Net capital turnover ratio In Days 7753.13 709.53 33 35 -5.20%
(1) Net profit ratio In Percentage 720.98 7753.13 9.00% 6.39% 40.81%
() Return on capital employed In Percentage 1381.79 8341.80 17.00% 5.00% 240.00%
(k) Return on investment In Percentage 720.98 9463.01 0.00% 0.00% NA

Current Ratio = (Current Assets / Current Liabilities)
Debt-Equity Ratio = (Total Debt / Total Equity)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio = (EBITDA / [Principal Repayment + Gross Interest on term loans])
Retum on Equity Ratio = (Total Comprehensive Income / Average Total Equity)
Inventory Tumover Ratio = 365 / (Net Revenue / Average Inventories)
'rade receivables Tumover Ratio = 365/ (Net Revenue / Average Trade receivables)
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio = 365 / (Total Purchase / Average Trade payables)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio = 365/ (Net Sales / Working Capital) Working Capital= Current Assets - Current Liabilities
Net Profit Ratio = (Net Profit / Net Sales)
Return on Capital employed = (Earning before interest and taxes / Capital Employed )
Capital Employed = Noncurrent Asset + Working Capital + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
Return on Investment (Assets) = (Total Comprehensive Income / Average Total Assets )

For HANNAH JOSEPH HOSPITAL LIMITED For HANNAH JOSEPHHOSPITALLIMITED 7~
b O A
Dr. M.J. Rrunkumar Dr. Fenn Kavitha Fenn Arunkumar i L
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 03608603) (DIN: 03608651)




